

8 said state radio broadcasting system. The board of supervisors of any  
 9 county may install as many additional such radio receiving sets as may  
 10 be deemed necessary. The cost of such radio receiving sets and the cost  
 11 of installation thereof shall be paid from the general fund of the  
 12 county.

1 SEC. 7. Section seven hundred fifty point five (750.5), Code 1973,  
 2 is amended to read as follows:

3 **750.5 Duty of city council to install—costs.** The council of each  
 4 city ~~shall, and the council of any town~~ may, install in such place as said  
 5 council may determine at least one such ~~locked in~~ radio receiving set  
 6 as may be ~~prescribed by the commissioner of public safety~~ for use in  
 7 law enforcement and police work. The cost of any such installation  
 8 shall be paid from the public safety fund of said city ~~or town~~.

Approved July 17, 1973.

This Act was passed by the G. A. before July 1, 1973.

CHAPTER 105

SOCIAL SERVICES

S. F. 604

AN ACT making an appropriation to the department of social services for certain public assistance programs and contractual services, changing the procedure for handling county claims arising from foster care for veterans' children, and relating to eligibility for assistance under the aid to dependent children program.

*Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:*

1 SECTION 1. There is appropriated from the general fund of the  
 2 state for the biennium beginning July 1, 1973 and ending June 30,  
 3 1975 to the department of social services for the designated public  
 4 assistance programs and contractual services the following amounts,  
 5 or so much thereof as may be necessary:

	1973-74	1974-75
	Fiscal Year	Fiscal Year
8 1. Old Age Assistance .....	\$ 2,770,000	\$
9 2. Aid to the Blind .....	\$ 178,000	\$ 40,000
10 3. Aid to Dependent Children .....	\$20,649,000	\$29,172,000
11 4. Work and Training Program .....	\$ 350,000	\$ 350,000
12 5. Aid to the Disabled .....	\$ 621,000	\$
13 6. Aid to Indians Residing on a Settlement..	\$ 43,000	\$ 43,000
14 7. Medical Assistance .....	\$27,522,000	\$33,442,000
15 8. Child Support Recoveries .....	\$ 75,000	\$ 75,000
16 9. Contractual Services—Medical Carrier	\$ 800,000	\$ 900,000
17 10. Contractual Services—other, including group homes, and child		
18 welfare foster care .....	\$ 2,750,000	\$ 2,750,000
19 11. Services to the Elderly, Blind and Disabled .....		
20 .....	\$ 500,000	\$ 500,000
21 12. Homemaker services .....	\$ 669,600	\$ 740,000
22 13. Adult Assistance Program—Special Situations for December 31,		
23 1973 caseload .....	\$ 1,100,000	\$ 2,200,000

1 SEC. 2. No funds appropriated by this Act shall be used for capi-  
2 tal improvements.

1 SEC. 3. Notwithstanding the provisions of section eight point  
2 thirty-three (8.33) of the Code, the unencumbered or unobligated bal-  
3 ance of the appropriation made by subsection twelve (12) of section  
4 one (1) of this Act for the first fiscal year of the biennium commenc-  
5 ing July 1, 1973, shall, on August 31, 1974, revert to the state trea-  
6 sury, and to the credit of the fund from which appropriated. In all  
7 other respects, the provisions of section eight point thirty-three (8.33)  
8 of the Code shall apply to appropriations made for the first fiscal year  
9 of such biennium by section one (1) of this Act.

1 SEC. 4. All federal grants to and the federal receipts of the agen-  
2 cies receiving funds under this Act are appropriated for the purpose  
3 set forth in the federal grants or receipts.

1 SEC. 5. The department of social services shall prepare and submit  
2 to the appropriations committees of the senate and house of represent-  
3 atives of the Sixty-fifth General Assembly, not later than January 15,  
4 1974, a report on the exact purposes for which money appropriated  
5 by section one (1), subsection six (6) of this Act has been and is  
6 then being expended. The report shall also set forth the depart-  
7 ment's conclusions as to what is being accomplished by the expendi-  
8 ture of that money.

1 SEC. 6. Section two hundred thirty-two point fifty-three (232.53),  
2 Code 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 **232.53 Recovery of costs—from another county or from the state.**  
4 The county charged with the cost and expenses under sections 232.51  
5 and 232.52 may recover the costs and expenses from the county where  
6 the child has legal settlement by filing verified claims which shall be  
7 payable as are other claims against the county. A detailed statement  
8 of the facts upon which the claim is based shall accompany the claim.  
9 Any dispute involving the legal settlement of a child for which the court  
10 has ordered payment under authority of this section shall be settled  
11 in accordance with sections 252.22 and 252.23. The county charged  
12 with the cost of foster home care for a child may recover the cost of  
13 such care from the general fund of the state if the child would other-  
14 wise have been eligible for admission to the Iowa juvenile home or The  
15 Annie Wittenmyer Home under the provisions of subsection 1 of sec-  
16 tion 244.3. The county shall make claim to the state department of  
17 social services which shall audit the ~~same and forward it to the state~~  
18 ~~treasurer~~ *claim and certify it to the state comptroller* for payment.

1 SEC. 7. Section two hundred thirty-nine point one (239.1), sub-  
2 section (3), Code 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 3. A "Dependent child" means a needy child under the age of six-  
4 teen years, or under the age of twenty years ~~and~~ who is a student regu-  
5 larly attending a high school in pursuance of a course of study lead-  
6 ing to a high school diploma or its equivalent, or *who is, in lieu of*  
7 *pursuing a course of study leading to a high school diploma or its*  
8 *equivalent*, regularly attending a course of vocational or technical  
9 training designed to fit him for gainful employment, who has been  
10 deprived of parental support and care by reason of death, continued

11 absence from home, ~~or~~ physical or mental incapacity or unfitness of  
 12 either parent, *or partial or total unemployment of the father*, and who  
 13 is living with his father, *or mother, or both, or with his grandfather,*  
 14 *grandmother, brother, sister, stepfather, stepmother, stepbrother,*  
 15 *stepsister, uncle or aunt, in a place of residence maintained by one or*  
 16 *more of such relatives as his or their home or has been placed in a*  
 17 *licensed foster home or with a public or nonprofit child-care agency*  
 18 *by the state division or by the county department of social welfare in*  
 19 *lieu of living with any relative designated in this subsection.*

1 SEC. 8. Section two hundred thirty-nine point two (239.2), Code  
 2 1973, is amended by adding the following new subsection:

3 NEW SUBSECTION. Is not, with respect to assistance applied for by  
 4 reason of partial or total unemployment of the father, the child of a  
 5 father who:

6 a. Has been unemployed for less than thirty days prior to receipt  
 7 of assistance under this chapter.

8 b. Is partially or totally unemployed due to a work stoppage which  
 9 exists because of a labor dispute at the factory, establishment or other  
 10 premises at which he is or was last employed.

11 c. At any time during the thirty-day period prior to receipt of assist-  
 12 ance under this chapter or at any time thereafter while assistance is  
 13 payable under this chapter, has not been available for employment,  
 14 has not actively sought employment, or has without good cause refused  
 15 any bona fide offer of employment or training for employment. The  
 16 following reasons for refusing employment or training are not good  
 17 cause: unsuitable or unpleasant work or training, if the father is  
 18 able to perform the work or training without unusual danger to his  
 19 health; or the amount of wages or compensation, unless the wages  
 20 for employment are below the federal minimum wage.

21 d. Has not registered for work with the state employment service  
 22 established pursuant to section ninety-six point twelve (96.12) of the  
 23 Code, or thereafter has failed to report at an employment office in  
 24 accordance with regulations prescribed pursuant to section ninety-  
 25 six point four (96.4), subsection one (1) of the Code.

26 e. Has failed to participate in or to cooperate in any work or train-  
 27 ing program made available to him under chapter two hundred forty-  
 28 nine C (249C) of the Code, or has without good cause withdrawn from  
 29 such program before completion. The department of social services  
 30 shall have a program under chapter two hundred forty-nine C (249C)  
 31 of the Code for the partially or totally unemployed father under this  
 32 subsection.

33 The division may prescribe requirements in addition to or in lieu  
 34 of the foregoing, for eligibility for assistance under this chapter to  
 35 children whose fathers are partially or totally unemployed, which are  
 36 necessary to secure financial participation of the federal government  
 37 in payment of such assistance.

Approved July 17, 1973.

This Act was passed by the G. A. before July 1, 1973.